
 
 

 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
PURCHASING DIVISION 1100 TENTH STREET, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31901 

P. O. BOX 1340, COLUMBUS, GEORGIA 31902-1340 
  706-653-4105, Fax 706-225-3033 
  www.columbusga.org 

  
May 11, 2018 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 3 

Inmate Medical & Pharmacy Services for  
Muscogee County Jail (Annual Contract) 

RFP No. 18-0019 
 

Proposals should include acknowledgement of receipt for all Addenda. 
 

 
Vendors are informed that the above subject RFP is hereby modified, corrected, or supplemented as specified, 
described and set forth in this Addendum: 
 
 

QUESTIONS/RESPONSES: 
 
1. The MCJ’s answer to vendor questions in the RFP notes that there is an analog dental x-ray 

machine in good working condition, but also that there were no dental x-rays taken and read 
annually.  Please clarify if the dental x-ray machine is currently used to take dental x-rays and 
how many are typically taken on a weekly or monthly basis. 
Response:  Yes, the dental x-ray machine is in good working order and it is currently 
being used by dental staff.  Approximately 11 dental x-rays are performed monthly. 
 

2. RFP Section I. B. Pharmacy Services – states:  “Contracted vendor shall invoice (monthly) the 
Muscogee County Jail for amounts paid by the contracted vendor, on behalf of the Muscogee 
County Jail for pharmacy services, and cost details for the same, plus the management fee 
(percentage)”.  Do the amounts paid for pharmacy services and invoiced monthly to the Jail 
include all charges from the pharmacy subcontractor to the medical services vendor including 
medication dispensing fees: 
Response:  Yes 
 

3. Please provide any performance measurements and associated liquidated damages in place in 
the current contract. 
Response:  There are no performance measurements and associated liquidated damages 
in place for the current contract. 
 

4. The RFP lists the current staffing matrix at 31.5 FTEs.  The first Amendment to the current 
contract, dated April 1, 2017, indicates 30.5 FTEs with no Administrator.  Please confirm 
which matrix represents the current contract terms. 
Response:  31.5 is correct. 
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5. Will the patient’s chart data in the current vendor’s EHR be transferred or provided to the new 
vendor’s proposed EHR for migration?  Does the County own their inmate data or does the 
vendor own the data? 
Response:  Yes, if the incumbent vendor is not awarded this contract, the patient’s chart 
data in the current vendor’s EHR will be provided to the new vendor.  All the data 
belongs to the Muscogee County Sheriff’s Office (MCSO).  
 

6. Please provide the monthly trend in prescriptions and medication costs in total and by major 
medication category, including but not limited to HIV, Hepatitis C, Hemophiliac, Cancer, 
Psychotropic classifications for the current and prior fiscal years. 
Response: 

HIV  August 2016 – March 2018 $35,290.14 monthly 
Hepatitis C August 2016 – March 2018 $0 
Hemophiliac August 2016 – March 2018 N/A 
Cancer  N/A 
Psychotropic $17,400.00 monthly 
 

7. Please provide the monthly trend in medication costs credits (separate from above costs) and 
administrative fees for the current and prior fiscal years. 
Response:  N/A 
 

8. Please provide a list of the top 25 medications by cost for the current and prior fiscal years. 
Response:  This specific information is not available at this time. 
 

9. Please provide the trend and current number of inmates under treatment for Hepatitis C. 
Response:  0 patients. 
 

10. Please provide the current protocol including medications currently in use for treatment of 
inmates infected with Hepatitis C. 
Response:  N/A 
 

11. Will the MCJ consider a cap on Hepatitis C, hemophiliac, cancer, and other high cost 
medications, which will allow vendors to avoid including risk premium for these treatments in 
their proposal? 
Response:  The Muscogee County Sheriff’s Office respectfully requests that all vendors 
provide proposals based on the current RFP specifications and addenda. 
 

12. Are HIV medications currently administered from stock or as patient specific order? 
Response:  HIV medications are ordered as patient-specific. 
 

13. Is the facility currently utilizing a paper medication pass or is the med pass electronic? 
Response:  Electronic 
 

14. How many prescriptions are dispensed on average per month? 
Response:  2,548 
 

15. Does the facility require a pharmacy license and what type of license?  Who is the license held 
by, the facility or the medical vendor? 
Response:  The Muscogee County Sheriff’s Office currently does not hold a pharmacy 
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license, and is relying on the expertise of proposing firms to provide the services in 
accordance with all local, state and federal laws. 
 

16. Please provide us with Monthly Service Statistical Reports for the past 2 years. 
Response:  See attachment. 

 
17. Please provide us with the annual expenditures for the past 2 years for: 

a. Total Health Care Services 
b. Total Pharmacy Services 
c. Total Hospital Services 
d. Total Specialty Services (Outside Physician, Surgery costs) 

Response: 
a. Health Care Services – 2017 $3,087,000.00 
b. Pharmacy Services – 2017 900,765.00 
c. Hospital Services N/A 
d. Specialty Services N/A 
 

18. Have medical employees been required to report or subpoenaed to local court systems in the 
past year, and if so, how many times? 
Response:  0 
 

19. Does the County or the current medical provider have any type of catastrophic medical cost 
insurance plan in place for this facility? 
Response:  The current provider does not. 
 

20. Please provide a listing of any current open medical positions and the length of time they have 
been open/unfilled. 
Response:  N/A 

 
21. Please provide the monthly number of patients currently on medications for the past year: 

a. Chronic Care 
b. Withdrawal 

Response:  Please see attached statistical reports. 
 
22. How are the EMR records stored (cloud based or server)?  And who pays for the maintenance 

and storage costs? 
Response:  Web server, and the contractor is responsible for server costs. 
 

23. Is there a discharge planning process in place?  And if so, can you explain the process? 
Response:  No 
 

24. Please state any current schedule in place for medical staff to hold sick call clinics each day. 
Response:  N/A 
 

25. How many days per week is the Dentist on-site? 
Response:  One (1) day per week. 

 
26. Regarding Appendix A, Response #94: 

a. Is the current Medical vendor billing Medicare and/or Medicaid at this time, or is that a 
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new program to be implemented within the next two (2) years? 
b. Is the current Medical vendor capturing either Medicare and/or Medicaid ID at this time? 

Response:   
a. No 
b. No 

 
27. How does the medical piece integrate into the agreement with New Horizon’s Mental Health 

Services? 
Response:  Mental health services are accomplished by a separate vendor, New Horizons.  
New Horizons and CCS communicate with each other when necessary to inform each 
other about a particular patient’s mental health/medical health needs or issues. 
 

28. Where is the current EMR hosted?  Is it hosted in the County’s data center or somewhere else? 
Response:  The current EMR is not hosted at Muscogee County; it is hosted by the 
provider. 
 

29. Is the Vizion EMR currently being used?  If not, is there another EMR being used?  What is the 
name of the EMR? 
Response:  Vizion EMR is not currently being used.  The current EMR is a Correct Care 
Solutions (CCS) property that is exclusive to them.  They call their system “ERMA”. 
 

30. Does the County want to continue using the Sapphire EMAR? 
Response:  It is not required for this RFP. 
 

31. Are the computers and printers that are in place sufficient for the staff currently? 
Response:  Yes 
 

32. If a new EMR is implemented, would the County require their forms configured or is it 
permissible to have the vendor’s form in the EMR application? 
Response:  In the event the contract is not awarded to the incumbent contractor, the new 
vendor will not have to use the forms that are currently in place, as long as the new forms 
are comparable to those forms being replaced.  New forms must be approved by security 
staff prior to use. 
 

33. Will the medical vendor need to provide computers for the medical staff to use? 
Response:  There are currently computers in place that should be acceptable for day-to-
day activity; any additional computers must be requested and a determination will be 
made by the Sheriff. 
 

34. Does the MCJ provide internet access for the clinical computers or does the medical vendor 
need to procure a separate internet circuit for medical computers? 
Response:  MCJ does have Wi-Fi and hard lines available for internet use. 
 

35. Please provide the quantity of medications dispensed of the top 50 drug costs for the last three 
months. 
Response:  This specific information is not available at this time. 
 

36. Are medication room inspections required for the jail?  What is the frequency required for the 
inspections? 
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Response:  Medication rooms are required to be inspected.  They are currently inspected 
weekly. 
 

37. How many inmates received direct acting antiviral medication for Hepatitis C in 2017?  So far 
in 2018?   
Response:  This specific information is not available at this time. 
 

 
 
 

Andrea J. McCorvey, 
Purchasing Division Manager 
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